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Cross Recommends Med School
Land Grant for V.A. Hospital

A recommendation by President Cross that four
and one-half acres of the University Medical School
campus be given the Veterans Administration for
a proposed $18,000,000 veterans hospital has been
approved by the Board of Regents and has been
presented to the Oklahoma Legislature.

The action was requested of President Cross by
Dr. J. P. Gray, dean of the School of Medicine, in
February. The additional land brings the Univer-
sity grant to a total of nine acres.

Col. Hagry E. Brown, member of the Veterans
Administration’s national hospital committee and
member of the Senate veterans affairs committee,
predicted recently that actual construction on the
hospital would begin within the near future. It is
expected that engineers will begin surveying the
site. within a short time after transactions are
completed, They must be formally approved by
President Truman and V. A, headquarters in
Washington.

The original estimate of the hospital was $10
millions on 4.5 acres of land but officials of the
V. A. held the acreage was too small to accommo-
date the 1,000-bed hospital. A Senate committee
has agreed to amend the bill to include nine acres.
The University owns all the area except three lots
and is arranging to obtain this from private owners.

Dean Gray and President Cross said the money
obtained from the land grant would be used for
further expansion.

Regents Act

At a meeting, the Board of Regents accepted the
resignation of eight faculty members, administra-
tive and clerical employees who are former stu-
dents, They include: Elizabeth B, Barnett, '36phys,
ed, instructor, physical education for women; W,
H. Akers, instructor in geology; Stanmore Brooks
Townes, "23ba, '25ma, who failed to return to his
position after termination of his leave of absence
for military service.

Wiley Richard, '42fa, announcer, WNAD; An-
netta Lee Kent, '45ed, clerical stenographer, cor-
respondence study department; Mrs. Mary Jane
Noble, "46bus, clerical stenographer, office of coun-
selor of women; Hazel Gunby, "41lib.sci, head of
the periodical department, University library; and
Ann Gottlieb, "46ba, junior psychometrist,

Faculty and clerical appointments  were ap-
proved by the Board of Regents recently, The ap-
pointments made were: Lawrence Vernon Scott,
'43bs, instructor of plant sciences; Irving Yale
Fishman, '42bs, graduate assistant in zoological
sciences; John T. Hedges, '291aw, special instruc-
tor in economics; Hal Muldrow, Jr., "28bus, part-
time special instructor in finance.

James Dolph Carmichael, Jr., "41ba, special in-
structor in economics; Richard P. Yielding, '36-'38,
and Lowell Dean Gregory, '4(ba, half-time in-
structors in mathematics; Jack M. Bowers, '39fa,
"41ma, music director, WNAD, assistant profes-
sor of music; Raymond Grover Loper, '38-'41,
graduate assistant in petroleum engineering.

Guy Herbert Brown, '42ba, instructor in speech;
Mrs. Ruth F. Walton, "38ba, '41ma, instructor in
journalism; C. Joe Holland, '37ba, supervisor of
student publications and special instructor in
journalism; Ruth Ann Park, "45ba, and Ann Hardy,
'46ba, teaching assistants in English; Ruth Collier
McSpadden, '44ba, teaching assistant classical
languages; William Allen Snyder, 45, graduate
assistant in physics.

Administrative and clerical appointments made
were: Patti Webb, *46bus, junior accountant; Mrs.
Virginia Nation Schubert, '45bus, clerical secre-
tary; Don M. Frensley, '41-'43, budget clerk; Ar-
thur L. McElmurry, '41-'43, junior accountant;
Fred Grove, '37ba, assistant in press relations;
Mrs. Edith Walker Hefley, "41ba, clerical secretary,
department of government.
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Watching while WNAD director fohn W. Dunn glances at seript to be broadcast over Oklahoma

ether waves are announcers Guss King Babb (left), finance major from Tulsa; Jack Payne (second

from right), sophomore arts and science student from Okemah, and Hilary Fry (rvight), arts and
science junior from Davis.

Soonerland’'s WNAD ‘Grows Up’
From 10 to 1,000-watt Station

From a 10-watt station in the basement of a
student’s home to a 1,000-watt station with sound
proof studios on the fourth and fifth floor of Okla-
homa Memorial Union Building tells much of the
quarter of a century history of WNAD), University
of Oklahoma's official broadcasting station.

Many changes and improvements have transpired
since the station first went on the air in the home
of its owner and builder,
Maurice L. Prescott, "24eng,
3leng, (now a General
Electric application engi-
neer) in September, 1922.
Prescott, assisted by the
Oklahoma Radio Engineer-
ing Co., which was organ-
ized by him, soon boosted
the station's power to 50
watts. By the time school
started in the fall of 1923,
the station had been pur-
chased by the School of
Engineering  which had
Maurice L. PRESCOTT pyilt a 100-watt transmit-
ter in the Electrical Engincering Laboratories. O,
W. Walter, '20ba, '2leng, '26eng, assistant pro-
fessor of electrical engineering, supervised this
construction.

During this early day period the station was
limited to about two-hour broadcasts three nights
a week. It now operates on a full daytime schedule,
averaging about 10 hours a day with more than
200 broadcast periods each weck. A recent permit
from the Federal Communication Commission au-
thorized broadcasts of basketball games at night.

The present day station of 1,000 watts was

boosted to that power by steps, not all at once. In
1925-26, a complete assembly of new equipment
permitted an increase in power to 500 watts. At
this time Charles E. Bathe, '25eng, '33ba, was
operator of the station. He was assisted by Byron
McDermott, '28eng, under the direction of Pro-
fessor Walter, in the installation of the new
equipment.

The official opening of the 500-watt station was
held in January, 1926. Since then the “Voice of
Soonerland™ has been heard in every state in the
union, every Canadian Province, Alaska, Mexico,
New Zealand, Hawaii, Cuba and other remote
points.

In 1927, Ted Beaird, then director of town and
country service in the University Extension Di-
vision, assumed the duties of program director and
general manager of the station. C. V. Bullen, as-
sistant professor of electrical engineering, was ap-
pointed to serve as mechanical director. In 1931,
when Bullen resigned from the faculty, Clyde L.
Farrar was appointed chicf engineer and mechani-
cal director.

Then in 1932, Walter Emery, '34law, now ‘in
the legal department of the Federal Communica-
tion Commission, was appointed chief announcer
and studio manager by General Manager Ted
Beaird, At that time Emery was director of forensics
in the University.

Emery was succeeded by Homer R. Heck, '35,
in 1934, who served under Beaird as studio man-
ager until 1935, when Harold McCollum, '34ba,
was appointed. In 1937, Heck, now NBC produc-
tion manager in Chicago, took over general man-
agement of WNAD and also became assistant man-
ager to Ted Beaird in the Alumni Corporation.
Heck held these positions until Beaird left for
army service early in 1942, A few wecks after
Beaird reported for active duty, Heck resigned in
favor of his NBC assignment.
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Upon Heck's resigning, Mrs. Paul Sears (Vir-
ginia Hawks, '37) became WNAD’s first woman
director. She was followed as director in 1944 by
John W. Dunn, former member of the University
drama faculty.

The part-time broadcasting status of WNAD was
terminated in 1940 when the station was assigned
its present frequency of 640 kilocycles and per-
mitted to assume a full daytime role. Studios were
moved from the Engineering Laboratory Building
to the Union Building and later to its present loca-
tion in Union Tower. The transmitter was moved
to the east wing of the stadium and a 300-foot
antenna was erected on the Norman Golf Course.

Until 1944 the staff of WNAD was composed of
students, but now has 13 full-time employes and
eight student employes. Seventy per cent of the
station's programs are presented by the staff.

The continuous six days a week, 52 weeks a
year operation in 1946 made facilities available to
over 41 agencies outside the University and to 46
departments of the University presenting regular
programs, In the last 11 months of 1946, a total of
2,847 persons in addition to the paid staff appeared
before WNAD microphones.

Six daily and four weckly news programs, in-
cluding a 15-minute daily review of campus news,
the only daily newscast of its type in the nation,
is presented over the station.

Rapid and consistent expansion is not over for
the University station, however. A construction
permit has been granted the University for a
new 3,000-watt frequency modulation station to
be known as KOKU. An application for a 5,000-
watt transmitter for WNAD has also been sub-
mitted.

In addition to Director John W. Dunn, the staff
consists of Bill Morgan, production manager; Guss
King Babb, '43, full time announcer; Jack Payne,
sophomore in Arts and Sciences of Okemah, part
time announcer; Hilary Fry, junior in English of
Davis, part ume announcer; Bob Nelson, fresh-
man of Norman, part time announcer; Ramey
Perot, chief engineer, and many others, both stu-
dents and full time employes.

University Placement Service
Unites Job-Seekers, Employers

Operating not only as a service for students
but also for Alumni scattered the world over,
the University Placement Service takes its place
among other departments of the University as
a clearing house for job requests.

Thousands of requests are handled annually
by this office, both for job-seckers and employers.
Requests come from all sections of the United
States and foreign countries for teachers, business
personnel, and technical and industrial employees.

A complete file is kept on all students and
alumni who have, within the past 20 years, applied
for a job. The office is completing a survey in
which approximately 4,000 questionnaires were
sent to teacher applicants listed in the files. The
purpose of the survey is to determine how many
of the former applicants are still interested in ob-
taining a position through the placement service,
as many of them have not been contacted since
applying for placement assistance.

The Placement Service is preparing to launch a
campaign to line up approximately 400 companies
in addition to the 200 that are now on the list of
receivers of a yearly letter. The annual letter will
inform the companies of the number and type
of O. U. seniors available for employment.

The local situation on employment is also han-
dled by survey. Each summer the placement serv-
ice sends a letter to department heads at the Uni-
versity and to Norman business men requesting a
list of anticipated needs for both full time and
part time employment for the school year to follow.

The University is the best source of part time
employment for students. Each office requires
secretaries and typists and many departments re-
quire lab assistants and other technicians. Norman
merchants likewise require many students to fill
their employment schedule.

Wives of married students find the placement
service extremely helpful in obtaining full time
employment for them while their husbands are
in school. Some firms in Oklahoma City have
also registered with the service to employ wives of
married students.
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Frank A. Ives, director of the University Placement Service, reviews a job placement application while

his staff looks on. They are left to right, Mrs. Betty Sue Moore, secretary; Mrs. Mary Lou Morgan, stu-

dent assistant; Miss Betty Broswn, '44ba, assistant director and head of student employment department;
and Mrs. Patricia Heumann, clerical-secretary.
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Something rather novel in job placement is being
worked on at the present time by the office. Jobs
on dude ranches, health resorts and other vacation
points of interest are being solicited for students
who are not attending school this summer.

Another new development is a library of occu-
pational information. Although still in its infancy,
the library is expected to grow into an invaluable
service to applicants not sure of the field they wish
to enter, or the exact work they plan to do. It will
include information about opportunities in various
jobs, earnings to be expected, entrance require-
ments for the field and other pertinent factors re-
lated to that particular vocation. Contributions to
the library will be made by company publications,
government bulletins, association magazines, de-
partment purchascs and many other sources.

The Placement Service would like to hear from
alumni and former students in business and indus-
try regarding the opportunities for employment
in the company with which they are’ associated,
and receive any suggestions or information which
might be added to the library or serve to promote
improved training and placement at the University
of Oklahoma.

In addition to the director, the placement office
requires four full time employees and one part
time employee. Two section heads, a clerk-typist
and a secretary comprise the full time staff. The
section heads are Miss Betty Brown, "44ba, who
received the master’s degree from Northwestern
University in 1946, and Miss Jane Plummer, who
received the B. A. degree from Illinois Wesleyan
in 1930, and the master's degree from Radcliffe
College in 1946. The clerical staff includes Mrs.
Betty Sue Moore, Mrs. Patricia Heumann and
Mrs. Mary Lou Morgan, all wives of student vet-
erans.

Accepting the position of Director of the Uni-
versity Placement Service was a homecoming for
Frank A. Ives, who brings a background of edu-
cational and industrial experience to this work. He
received the bachelor of arts degree in 1938 from
Central State at Edmond, and taught in Oklahoma
high schools for five years, one year at Dale and
four years at Cleveland. Following two years of
industrial personnel work in the Douglas Aircraft
Plant in Chicago, he entered Northwestern Uni-
versity where he received the Master's Degree in
1945, He served as Assistant Director of Student
Affairs at that University, while a graduate stu-
dent, and then accepted a position as senior
counselor and acting director of the WVeterans
Guidance Center in Chicago. It was from there
that he came to the University.

Oklahoma Industry, Retail Sales
Increase; Building Declines

Winter brought renewed prosperity to Oklahoma
in almost every field, the University of Oklahoma
Bureau of Business Research reports,

Postal receipts, bank debits, freight carloadings
and electricity production were all above the levels
of December, 1945. Only building permits, fol-
lowing the trend of the past month, declined in
volume below last year's level.

The dollar volume of building permits issued in
December was 38.3 per cent less than in November,
and 46.3 per cent less than a year ago. Fifteen of
22 sample cities reported declines, and Tulsa and
Oklahoma City reported significant drops in build-
ing.

On the brighter side of the business picture was
increased production in most industries of' Okla-
homa. Cotton ginning was the only one to decline,
as practically all the 1946 crop was harvested. Other
industries increased December production over
November, and in most instances over December,
1945.

Retail trade was booming, too, if increased turn-
over in checking accounts were an indication. After
a 5.5 per cent drop in bank deposit withdrawals
in November, the holiday trade soared with-
drawals to a 27.4 per cent increase in December.
The increase was not entirely seasonal, however,
for December debits in deposit accounts show a
24.6 per cent increase over December, reflecting
both additional spending and increased prices.
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